XNV W

LAKE FOREST LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES
360 East Deerpath Road, Lake Forest, IL 60045
February 11, 2020
7:30 pm Reed Room — Main Floor
Regular Meeting

Board Materials

Agenda

January 14, 2020 Regular Meeting Minutes

January 2020 Financial Report

Commercial Landscape Management Contract with Mariani Landscaping
FY2021 Library Hours

Library Director Evaluation Process

Greco Electrical Contractors, Inc. estimate for work

FY2021 Budget



@@ | \KE FOREST

-- =LIBRARY

LAKE FOREST LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES
360 East Deerpath Road, Lake Forest, IL 60045
February 11, 2020
7:30 pm Reed Room - Main Floor
Regular Meeting

i

o Agenda

£,

ij;fi 1. Call Meeting to Order

;{1 2. Board of Trustees Roll Call

j:: 3. Additions to the Agenda

,;éi"; 4. For action: Approval of the Agenda

;“”*‘; 5. Opportunity for the Public to Address the Board and Correspondence
Nod 6. For action: Approval of the January 14, 2020 Regular Meeting Minutes
& 7. For action: Discussion and approval of January 2020 Financial Report
s 8. For action: Discussion and approval of Commercial Landscape Management
*Jﬁ Contract with Mariani Landscaping

5«:‘;§ 9. For action: Discussion and approval of FY2021 Library Hours

£ 10. The Library Building Project

e a. For action: Discussion and approval of HGA Contract, Stage 2

* 11. For action: Discussion and approval of Greco Electrical Contractors, Inc. work
;;i 12. Library Director Report

f"‘} a. For discussion: review of Library Director evaluation process

el b. For discussion: FY2021 Library Budget

s;“; 13. Services Committee

;:;f} 14. Unfinished Business

i 15. New Business

’5;« 16. Adjournment

— Upcoming Regular Board Meeting: March 10, 2020 7:30 pm, Reed Room

Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe
and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the
meetings or the facilities are requested to contact the Library Director at 847.810.4602 promptly
to allow the Library to make reasonable accommodations.

360 E DEERPATH RD, LAKE FOREST, ILLINOIS 60045 + 84723340636 » WWW.LAKEFORESTLIBRARY.ORG



Agenda ltem 6

Approval of the January 14, 2020 Regular Meeting Minutes



Lake Forest Library Board of Trustees
360 E Deerpath Road, Lake Forest, IL 60045
Regular Meeting Minutes
7:30 p.m,, January 14, 2020

CALLTO ORDER
President Carrie Travers called the meeting to order at 7:31 p.m.

ROLL CALL

Trustees Present: Germaine Arnson, Wendy Darling, JoAnn Desmond, Elizabeth Grob, Andrea Lemke, Ron
Levitsky, Todd Puch, David Rose, Carrie Travers.
Staff Present: Catherine Lemmer, Library Director. Public present: None.

ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA
None

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

Trustee Levitsky made a motion, seconded by Trustee Desmond, to approve the agenda. Motion carried
unanimously.

OPPORTUNITY FOR THE PUBLIC TO ADDRESS THE BOARD, AND CORRESPONDENCE
No request to address the board, nor was there any new correspondence.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Trustee Levitsky made a motion, seconded by Trustee Lemke, to approve the December 10, 2019 Regular
Meeting Minutes. Motion carried unanimously.

APPROVAL OF THE DECEMBER 2019 FINANCIAL REPORT

Ms. Lemmer presented the highlights of the December 2019 financial report. After discussion, Trustee
Arnson made a motion, seconded by Trustee Levitsky, to approve the December 2019 financial report.
The motion carried unanimously with a roll call vote.

DISCUSSION AND APPROVAL OF CHANGES TO LIBRARY POLICIES TO REFLECT THE CANNABIS REGULATION
AND TAX ACT AND WORKPLACE TRANSPARENCY ACT

After discussion, Trustee Levitsky made a motion, seconded by Trustee Puch, to approve changes to the
Employee Handbook (Personnel Manual) to include: prohibition on the use of cannabis and cannabis-
infused products, changes to the Rules for Using the Library, and the addition of protections for Trustees
to the Anti-Harassment and Nondiscrimination Policy. The motion passed unanimously.

LIBRARY BUILDING PROJECT DISCUSSION
Prior to discussion, President Travers asked Board members to declare any conflicts of interest and report

any Ex Parte communications not previously disclosed. Hearing none, discussion of the Library Building
Project commenced.

Page 1 0of 2



Lake Forest Library Board of Trustees
Regular Meeting Minutes
January 14, 2020

The Hodge Group continues to conduct feasibility interviews with community members and will conclude
these efforts by the end of February. Meetings with the Mayor and City staff regarding public-private
financing options are also planned. Ongoing development of the case statement, refinement of HGA plan
drawings, and updates to the project timeline occur as feedback from these meetings warrant. The Hodge
Group will present findings and recommendations to the Library Board in March.

The Lake Forest Library Foundation, an Illinois not-for-profit corporation, was formed in December 2019.
Approval of Section 501(c)3 status and an additional filing will complete the process.

LIBRARY DIRECTOR REPORT

Programming was strong in December including a very well-attended Exam Escape. A holiday magic show,
a coding class for Girl Scouts, and a Dungeons and Dragons adventure were a few of the offerings during
the month. Tech classes continue to have good attendance and new circulating tech items are being
added, including Virtual reality and gaming. The new fine-free policy went into effect with a soft roll out
in early January. February 1 is the official date.

An offer was made to Ed Finn to join the Library staff as Head of Operations. Ed brings a wealth of
experience to the position and will start on January 21, 2020.

Year-end gifts to the Library included a generous donation from the Buchanan Foundation. In addition,
donors to The Friends were acknowledged and invited to discuss the Library Building Project.

Signage for the restrooms has been completed in compliance with the lllinois Equitable Restrooms Act. In
addition, efforts are underway to determine if space modifications can make two existing ADA-compliant
restrooms, currently in administrative spaces, available for public use.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS
No unfinished business.

NEW BUSINESS
No new business.

ADJOURNMENT
Trustee Levitsky made a motion, seconded by Trustee Travers, to adjourn the meeting at 8:30p.m. Motion
carried unanimously.

Upcoming Meetings:

Regular Board Meeting: February 11, 2020, 7:30 p.m., Reed Room
Services Committee Meeting: February 11, 2020, 6:30 p.m., Reed Room

Germaine Arnson, Secretary
Minutes to be approved by the Board on February 11, 2020.

Page 2 of 2



Agenda Item 7

Approval of January 2020 Financial Report



REVENUES

Unassigned Funds on Hand 5/1

Tax Based (Levy, SSN, IMRF)

Non Tax Based
Gifts (includes Friends)
TOTAL REVENUES

TOTAL FUNDS ON HAND

EXPENDITURES

Salaries & Wages

Fringes

SSN

IMRF

Materials (print, AV, tech, online)
Other Operating Expenses
Building Maintenance

Sub Total

Capital

TOTAL

BALANCE

RESERVES

Capital Improvements
Technology Improvements
Capital Equipment

Current
Month
Actual

$1,727,562

$1,717

$15,293
$3,250
$20,260

$1,747,822

$123,380
$34,017
$9,209
$12,200
$43,812
$46,905
$9,134

$278,656

S0

$278,657

$2,050,000
$300,000
$300,000
$2,650,000

Lake Forest Library
Year-to-Date Monthly Financial Report
January 2020
Unaudited Month 9
FY2020

Actual
$1,727,562

$4,177,624

$143,900
$114,382
$4,435,906

$6,163,468

$1,198,773
$275,564
$89,534
$93,355
$403,247
$347,813
$143,510

$2,551,795

$17,833

$2,569,629

$3,593,840

Year to Date Yearto Date

Budget
$937,906

$4,247,881

$47,400
$62,250
$4,357,531

$5,295,438

$1,328,464
$298,497
$106,443
$138,240
$479,250
$427,781
$184,350

$2,963,025

$153,750

$3,116,775

$2,178,662

Annual
Budget

$937,906

$4,247,881

$63,200
$83,000
$4,394,081

$5,331,988

$1,817,898
$408,470
$145,659
$189,170
$639,000
$570,375
$245,800

$4,016,372

$205,000

$4,221,372

$1,110,616

{Over)/Under

Variance

($70,257)

$96,500
$52,132
$78,375

$868,031

$129,691
$22,933
$16,909
$44,885
$76,003
$79,968
$40,840

$411,230

$135,917

$547,146

% of
Annual Budget

98.35%

227.69%
137.81%
100.95%

65.94%
67.46%
61.47%
49.35%
63.11%
60.98%
58.38%

63.53%

8.70%

60.87%



Lake Forest Library
January 2020 (Month 9) FY2020
Financial Notes

Revenues

Funds on Hand: $1,727,562 (audited).

Tax Based: $4,177,624 (98%); payments received in June and September. Still awaiting $71,974 to
complete this budget line; will continue to monitor the deficit in the account line.

Non-Tax Based: $143,900 non-tax revenues; includes quarterly payments representing the
Library’s portion of the RAILS LLSAP (local library support automation program) Support Grant due
to CCS for becoming a LLSAP unit of RAILS; a rebate from CCS; per capita grant of $24,218; $1,358

sales commission from Better World Books; $8,611 impact fee; 58,409 library fines; and $86,010
in investment income.

Gifts: $114,382; Includes Friends FY2020 grant of $73,000.

Expenditures

Salaries, Fringes: $1,198,773 for salaries: 66% of FY budget; $275,564 for fringes: 67% of FY budget.
$89,534 for SSN: 61% of FY budget; $93,355 for IMRF: 49% of FY budget.

Materials; Books, AV _and Electronic Services: $403,247: 64% of FY budget. New circulating

technology will come from this line. Annual payments for periodical and database subscriptions
come in during first quarter.

Other Operating Expenditures: $347,813: 61% of FY budget. Includes administrative fee payments
paid to City of Lake Forest of $16,351 and audit fee of $6,995. Also includes Special Project
payments of $37,126 (The Hodge Group and HGA).

Building Maintenance: $143,510: 58% of FY budget. Reflects cleaning service contract, service calls

and repairs for HVAC, electrical, and other systems; and annual liability and casualty insurance
premiums.

Capital: $17,833: 9% of FY budget. Includes the replacement of the two amp services due to the
transformer blow-out.

Reserves

$1,727,562 - Operating cash reserve (fund balance-unassigned). Current assigned reserves: capital

equipment ($300,000), capital improvements ($2,050,000), and technology ($300,000), resulting
$2,650,000 in reserves.

Year to Date FY2020: 61% of budget expenses; 99% budget revenues.



Agenda ltem 8

Discussion and Approval of Commercial Landscape Management Contract

Attached please find the contract from Mariani Landscape for the 2020 landscape season. The
scope remains the same for the 2020 season: the robot mower will be reinstalled in spring; the
(4) rotations for the pots and the entrance; and the basic plant health care treatments necessary
for the perennials, crab trees, and magnolias. The contract is for $15,617.02.

There may be additional pruning and mulch needed, but that will be determined later in spring,
and billed separately.

We are working with the City of Lake Forest to assess any pruning needs and to see if the Library’s
trees come within the City’s purview.

This is the Library’s second year with Mariani Landscape. The work is comparable to what was
provided by don fiori company inc., including the potential add-ons for mulch and pruning. In
2018, the Library’s basic grounds contract with don fiori company inc. was $20,037.



\
.y

k rest Libr rvi m
360 E Deerpath, Lake Forest, IL. 60045-2252
2020 - 2021
Maintenance Services
Commercial Landscape Management 2020 Total: 12,646.25 O
Total for Maintenance Services: $12,646.25
Additional Services
Spring Annuals 2020 Total: 298.88 [
Summer Annuals 2020 Total: 31572 O
Fall Annuals 2020 Total: 272.72 O
Winter Display - 2020 Total: 538.45 O
Winter Display Removal 2021 Total: 63.00 [
Sub - Plant Health Care 2020 Total: 1,482.00 [
Total for Additional Services: $2,970.77
Grand Total For All Services: $15,617.02

Cwm MMJ/\-/ 1/13/2020

Chris Detweiler Date Joe Faust Date

By signing above you are acknowledging that you have received the Conditions of Contract and Contract Specifications and have agreed to the
payment terms and information outlined in your contracts.

A copy of the Conditions of Contract can be found here: http://www.marianilandscape.com/CoC pdf.

Please see the next page for the payment details of your contracts.

Mariani Landscape 300 Rockland Road, Lake Biuff, lllinois 60044  Tel: 847.234.2172 Fax: 847.234.2754

A0 011320 www.marianilandscape.com



\‘é

N

MARIANI B ..

For i rvi
360 E Deerpath, Lake Forest, IL 60045-2252

Maintenance Services

Payment Information:

The total contract amount for your Maintenance Services is $12,646.25.

D 8 installment payments of $1,580.78 will be invoiced for 8 months starting in April and ending in November.
(Monthly Installment Payments do not reflect work performed within that specific month.}

Additional Services

Payment Information:

Payment of $891.23, which is 30% of your total additional contracts totaling $2,970.77, is due upon acceptance of these
contracts.

(Note: Remaining balance due upon completion of work.)

Mariani Landscape 300 Rockland Road, Lake BIluff, lllingis 60044  Tel: 847.234.2172 Fax: 847.234.2754

A0 011320 www.marianilandscape.com



Commercial Landscape Management 2020
Landscape Contract Specifications

Contract # 192644
Submitted To: Lake Forest Library Project. Lake Forest Library
clo Joe Faust 360 E Deerpath
360 E Deerpath Lake Forest, IL. 60045-2252

Lake Forest, IL 60045-2252
Sales Representative: Chris Detweiler

("The above named party") agrees to contract with Mariani Enterprises, Inc. ("Mariani Landscape") for the project work
described below for the Total Contract Price set forth on the contract summary page:

Weekly Maintenance

Weekly Maintenance:

Weekly Maintenance will be completed throughout the growing season, April through November, as weather permits.
Services include the following:

¢ Pruning: Hand pruning, shearing and deadheading techniques performed at appropriate times to remove dead,
diseased and damaged branches, new seasonal growth, encourage flowering and improve plant vigor to
achieve the intended design effect. This includes ground covers, ornamental trees (up to 15’ in height),
deciduous and evergreen shrubs.

e Vines: Vines shall be pruned as needed (up to 15' in height) to maintain size; keep clear of lighting fixtures,
window frames, eaves and wood siding.

¢ Plant Beds: Initially remove weeds and landscape debris accumulated over the winter. Cultivate open soil beds
and rake mulched beds for a neat and clean appearance. Hand spade edge all turf adjacent to planting beds
and apply a balanced, granular fertilizer to applicable beds. Throughout the growing season hand weed open
beds and ground cover, lightly cultivate and spade edge planting beds, as needed to maintain a neat and clean
appearance. Atthe end of the season, remove fallen leaves, branches, annual flower plantings and apply a
balanced, granular fertilizer to applicable beds. Please note that some leaves may be left in groundcover beds
for winter protection.

o Perennial Care: Initially prune dead foliage and remove accumulated landscape debris. Spring ephemerals
shall be cut back to ground level at the appropriate times. Throughout the growing season prune/deadhead
applicable perennials as needed to maintain appearance and encourage desirable growth. Applicable plants
shall be staked to support new growth. At the end of the season perennials will be cut back and accumulated
debris removed. Perennials such as hydrangea, astilbe, sedum and ornamental grasses shall remain to provide
winter interest where applicable.

e Lawn Care: Initially remove accumulated landscape debris from turf and rake lawn as needed. Bare spots in
turf shall be addressed with the appropriate seed and amendments to encourage seed germination.
Throughout the growing season the turf shall be mowed to approximately 2" to 3" high, as site conditions permit.
Mowing equipment and pattemns shall be employed to allow recycling of clippings where possible, and to
present a neat, healthy appearance. Excess clippings and debris shall be removed as needed. Blades on all
mowers shall be sharp to prevent tearing of grass blades. At the end of the season remove fallen leaves and
branches as needed. Mow turf to a minimum height of 1-1/2" to 2" to help minimize winter turf diseases.

s Gravel Areas: Rake gravel areas as needed to redistribute grave! and collect accumulated debris in order to
provide a level, well-manicured appearance.

+ Window Wells: Clean and remove debris from accessible window wells as needed.

¢ Containers and Window Boxes: Upon request, containers will be removed from storage and arranged as

4 Mariani Landscape o
Y=o RS iy nun oo
Page 1 of 4 one: 847.234. ax: 847.234.
MARIANI B et agete www.marianilandscape.com

Rev 03.08.11 MEM

AJO 011320



appropriate. At the end of the season containers will be emptied and cleaned. Containers shall be placed in
storage on site.

¢ Hoses: Upon request, hoses will be removed from storage and arranged as appropriate. At the end of the
season hoses will be disconnected, drained and coiled in preparation for winter storage.

+ Patio Fumiture: Upon request, patio furniture wili be removed from storage and arrange as appropriate. At the
end of the season patio furniture will be placed in storage on site.

e Irrigation: Recommendations will be made, as needed, to adjust the rate of water application to meet changing
conditions. Time clock adjustments, repairs, and maintenance of the system shall be the responsibility of the
owner. Mariani Landscape cannot be held responsible for damaged or improperly installed systems.

+ General: Crews are instructed to check and clean under doormats, clean stairwells and remove cobwebs from
all visible outside areas at the first floor level of the home. Patio furniture shall be arranged after sweeping.

=  Winter Protection: Applicable trees shall be wrapped with burlap to help minimize frost crack and wildlife
damage. Applicable plants shall be netted to help reduce deer browse.

¢ Refuse: Sweep and/or blow off hard surfaces upon completion of work as local ordinances permit. Remove all
associated landscape debris from site and deliver to a licensed composting center.

¢ Communication: Your Client Representative is available to meet at your convenience to discuss site issues and
recommendations for improvements.

¢ Please Note: Maintenance services that are required December through March shall be provided, as
requested, and invoiced on a time and material basis at our current hourly rate.

Dormant Season Pruning

Dormant Pruning:

Designated plant material during the dormant season will be selected. This type of pruning establishes form, reduces
size, rejuvenates and promotes overall plant vigor. During dormancy, the structure of deciduous plants is easily seen,
insects and diseases are not active, and beds are clear and solid to support the activity with minimal disruption to the
landscape.

Furnish supervision, labor and equipment required to complete the following:

e Various deciduous shrubs located on the property will be rejuvenated or reduced in size including many
dogwoods, viburnum and hydrangeas.

+ Remove all associated debris from site.

e Please note: Schedule work to occur as weather and site conditions permit.

Page 2 of 4

MARIANI LANDSCAPE
Rev 0309.11 MEM
AJD B11320



Turf Program - Basic

Basic - Fertilizer, Broadleaf Weed Control and Pre-Emergent:

Furnish a licensed applicator, equipment and material required to complete the following:

Two rounds of fertilizer

Four rounds of herbicide

One round preventative insecticide

One round of pre-emergent

Provide notification and flag site, driveway or parking lots and primary building entrances as needed.

Fertilizer: A slow release, granular fertilizer applied to applicable lawn areas.

Herbicide: Scout for and treat broadleaf weeds as needed to maintain a neat appearance including hardscape
surfaces.

Preventative Insecticide: Applied to applicable lawn areas in late April or early May, contingent on site and weather
conditions, targeting grubs and billbugs.

Pre-Emergent: Apply pre-emergent herbicide to all applicable lawn areas to help discourage weed seed germination.

Please note:

Hev 03.08.11 MEM
AIG 01320

Additional late season treatment(s) may be necessary to achieve full spectrum control of crabgrass and/or undesirable
insects.

Page 3 of 4

MARIANI LANDSCAPE



Rose Care Program - Basic

Rose Care Program - Basic:

¢ Rose maintenance visits will occur on a 2-3 week interval, beginning in April and continuing through September for
approximately 12 visits, as weather and site conditions permit.

Spring Cleanup:
e Uncover roses in April as weather and site conditions permit.

e Inspect and prune roses in early spring (at bud break), and prune to remove dead or damaged tissue, reduce size,
improve structure and prepare each plant for the growing season.

» Remove any accumulated debris and cultivate soil to present a neat appearance.

Pruning:
o Inspect, prune and deadhead roses, beginning in June and continuing through October to remove faded blooms,
maintain size, encourage desirable growth and bloom.

Bed Care:

» Clean any accumulated debris from the planting bed to maintain a healthy environment and neat appearance. Weed
beds as necessary and rake and refresh muich as needed, (May - October).

Fertilization:

e Furnish (2) applications of granular fertilizer to encourage plant health and vigor. Complete the first application in
spring and a second application in early summer.

Integrated Pest Management:
e Treat roses following inspection to suppress disease and insect activity to encourage plant health and vigor.

Note: Additional pest control applications beyond the scope of this program may be required based on weather, insect
and disease activity and the tolerance of the homeowner.

Fall Service:
s Prune roses in fall to reduce size as needed. Cover (mound) each plant with humus to provide winter protection.

Please note:

o Service will begin on or about April15th and continue until the end of the season - approximately November 30th.
e Wildlife repellent is not included in this program but shall be offered as a separate proposal should the need arise.

Note: Please see attached Summary page for Prices, Terms & Conditions.

Page 4 of 4

MARIANI LANDSCAPE

FRev 308,11 MEM

AJD 011320



Spring Annuals 2020
Landscape Contract Specifications
Contract # 185227

Submitted To: Lake Forest Library Project: Lake Forest Library
c/o Joe Faust 360 E Deerpath
360 E Deerpath Lake Forest, IL 60045-2252

Lake Forest, IL 60045-2252
Sales Representative: Chris Detweiler

("The above named party") agrees to contract with Mariani Enterprises, Inc. ("Mariani Landscape") for the project work
described below for the Total Contract Price set forth on the contract summary page:

Spring Annuals - Planters

Furnish supervision, labor, equipment and material required to complete the following:

» Amend soil as needed and prepare containers for planting.

» Install a spring arrangement.

« Water and maintain arrangements once per week during the maintenance visit for the balance of the season.
» Remove all associated debris from site.

Note: Please see attached Summary page for Prices, Terms & Conditions.

4 Mariani Landscape
Ve 200 g s Lol B il oo
Page 1 of 1 one: 234, ax: 234,
MARIANI S S ageto www.marianilandscape.com

Rev 03.09.11 MEM
AJO 011320



Summer Annuals 2020
Landscape Contract Specifications

Contract # 188345
Submitted To: Lake Forest Library Project: Lake Forest Library
¢/o Joe Faust 360 E Deerpath
360 E Deerpath Lake Forest, IL 60045-2252

Lake Forest, IL 60045-2252
Sales Representative: Chris Detweiler

("The above named party") agrees to contract with Mariani Enterprises, Inc. ("Mariani Landscape") for the project work
described below for the Total Contract Price set forth on the contract summary page:

Summer Annuals - Planters

Furnish supervision, labor, equipment and material required to complete the following:

« Amend soil as needed and prepare containers for planting.

» Install an arrangement comprised of large tropical, summer annual flowers and trailer in each pot.

» Water and maintain arrangements once per week during the maintenance visit for the balance of the season.
¢ Remove all associated debris from site.

Note: Please see attached Summary page for Prices, Terms & Conditions.

4 Mariani Landscape
Yo RS oy s e
Page 1 of 1 one: 847.234. ax: 847.234.
MARIANI . Seeam. ageto www.marianilandscape.com

Rev 03.08.11 MEM
A/ 011320



Fall Annuals 2020

Landscape Contract Specifications
Contract # 196503

Submitted To: Lake Forest Library
cl/o Joe Faust
360 E Deerpath
Lake Forest, IL. 60045-2252

Project: Lake Forest Library
360 E Deerpath
Lake Forest, IL. 60045-2252

Sales Representative: Chris Detweiler

("The above named party") agrees to contract with Mariani Enterprises, Inc. ("Mariani Landscape") for the project work
described below for the Total Contract Price set forth on the contract summary page:

Fall Annuals - Planters

Furnish supervision, labor, equipment and material required to complete the following:

¢« Remove summer display and amend soil as needed.

o |nstall a fall mix in each planter.

» Water and maintain arrangements once per week during the maintenance visit for the balance of the season.

¢ Remove all associated debris from site.

Note: Please see attached Summary page for Prices, Terms & Conditions.

Rev 03.07.11 MEM

AG 511320

Page 1 of 1



Rev 03.074

A 011320

Winter Display - 2020
Landscape Contract Specifications
Contract # 198670

Submitted To: Lake Forest Library
cl/o Joe Faust
360 E Deerpath
Lake Forest, IL 60045-2252

Project: Lake Forest Library

360 E Deerpath
Lake Forest, IL. 60045-2252

Sales Representative: Chris Detweiler

("The above named party") agrees to contract with Mariani Enterprises, Inc. ("Mariani Landscape”) for the project work
described below for the Total Contract Price set forth on the contract summary page:

Winter Display - Planters

Furnish supervision, labor, equipment and material required to complete the following:

s Remove fall display and prepare planter for greens.

» Install mixed greens in the two pots.

Note: Please see attached Summary page for Prices, Terms & Conditions.

1MEM

Page 1of 1



Winter Display Removal 2021
Landscape Contract Specifications
Contract # 199325

Submitted To: Lake Forest Library
clo Joe Faust
360 E Deerpath
Lake Forest, IL 60045-2252

Project: Lake Forest Library

360 E Deerpath
Lake Forest, IL 60045-2252

Sales Representative: Chris Detweiler

("The above named party") agrees to contract with Mariani Enterprises, Inc. ("Mariani Landscape") for the project work
described below for the Total Contract Price set forth on the contract summary page:

Winter Display - Removal

Remove and dispose of winter décor and associated equipment.

Note: Please see attached Summary page for Prices, Terms & Conditions.

Rev 0307 11 MEM

AIG 011320

Page 1 of 1



Sub - Plant Health Care 2020
Landscape Contract Specifications
Contract # 197599

Submitted To: Lake Forest Library
clo Joe Faust
360 E Deerpath
l.ake Forest, IL. 60045-2252

Project: Lake Forest Library

360 E Deerpath
Lake Forest, IL. 60045-2252

Sales Representative: Chris Detweiler

("The above named party") agrees to contract with Mariani Enterprises, Inc. ("Mariani Landscape") for the project work
described below for the Total Contract Price set forth on the contract summary page:

Blight & Needle Cast Treatments

s Provide blight and needle cast treatment to all boxwood and spruce throughout the property to help suppress fungal

problems.

e Total of (3) treatments to be completed as season and weather conditions dictate.

Apple Scab & Cedar Apple Rust Treatment

¢ Provide treatments to all crabapples and hawthorns throughout the property to help suppress apple scab and cedar

apple rust.

¢ Total of (3) treatments to be completed as season and weather conditions dictate.

Note: Please see attached Summary page for Prices, Terms & Conditions.

Rev §3.07.11 MEM

AC 011320

Page 10of 1



Agenda ltem 9

Discussion and Approval of FY2021 Library Hours

Attached is the FY2021 proposed library hours reflecting the addition of Sunday hours during
June, July, and August. The attached also lists the Library closures, including the suggested closing
of Sunday during the Memorial Day and Labor Day weekends.



7l L \E FOREST

e | IBRARY

LIBRARY HOURS
May 2020 — April 2021

Monday — Thursday: 9:00 am — 9:00 pm
Friday: 9:00 am - 6:00 pm
Saturdays: 9:00 am - 5:00 pm
Sundays: 1:00 pm - 5:00 pm

Library Closures

Memorial Day Weekend Sunday, May 24 & Monday, May 25, 2020
Independence Day Eve Friday, July 3, 2020 (no change, open to 6:00)
Independence Day Saturday, July 4, 2020

Lake Forest Day Wednesday, August 5, 2020 (closed parade hours)
Labor Day Sunday, September 6 & Monday, September 7, 2020
Thanksgiving Eve Wednesday, November 25, 2020 (close at 5:00 pm)
Thanksgiving Day Thursday, November 26, 2020

Christmas Eve Thursday, December 24, 2020

Christmas Day Friday, December 25, 2020

New Year’s Eve Thursday, December 31, 2020 (close at 5:00 pm)
New Year's Day Friday, January 1, 2021

Sunday Closing Sunday, Aprit 4, 2021

TBD: Staff In-Service Day(s): Fall % day; Spring % day - full day.

360 E DEERPATH RD, LAKE FOREST, ILLINOIS 60045 + 8472340636 + WWW.LAKEFORESTLIBRARY.ORG



Agenda ltem 12a

Review of the Library Director Evaluation Process

In 2019 the Library implemented the attached Library Director Evaluation Process and Evaluation
Form.

In keeping with the process, here are the upcoming steps:

e Late February/early March: the Library will mail the following to each Board member

Evaluation Form

Director’s written self-evaluation

Salary information from other libraries

Addressed, postage-stamped envelope to return completed evaluation form to

President

e Evaluation form completed and returned to President in March

e President and one other Board member compile the results and meet with Library
Director before April meeting

e April or May Board meeting includes an Executive Session at which the Board discusses
the results of the evaluation, provides the director with a written evaluation, and votes
on salary and bonus compensation for FY2021

o O O O



Lake Forest Library Director Review Process

Why Conduct an Annual Review of the Library Director?

Provide clear expectations from Board and feedback on performance
Annual performance appraisal is an essential management process
Key component of good governance and Board oversight
Opportunity for two way communication and feedback

How does this process work?

Board and Library Director agree on clear and measurable work plan.
Work plan is focused around goals for the year that are key to delivering on the
Library Mission (LFL Mission: mspiring lifelong learning, promoting the free and
respectful exchange of ideas, and building community
Timing of review process should comcide with LFL Library Fiscal Year (May-April).
Board of Trustees need to agree on key goals for the year and measures for success
and align on this plan with Library Director. This discussion forms the basis for the
work plan for the year for the Library Director. During the year, changes or
deviations from this plan should be discussed and mutually agreed to by the Board to
avold end of year surprises.
The process 1s designed to be a positive process centered upon open and clear
communication

- Goals are mutually agreed upon

~ Discussions occur if changes are necessary

- Feedback provided by Board at year end

- Employee has opportunity to address Board to clarify feedback and share
concerns

Goal Setting by Library Board of Trustees

Work is categorized into key “pillars” or activity areas (see attached)
Each pillar includes key goals (these are still to be defined)
Each goal should have a key measure of success

Goals should be set by Board and agreed to with Library Director forming the basis
of the annual work plan

Kev Criteria for Goal?

Fach should be measurable.
Each goal should directly relate to our mission statement.
Library Director can directly influence and affect each goal.

Next Steps in Process

1.

Library Board to Align to Pillars to be completed 1/19

2. Library Board to set Goals by Pillar to be completed 2/19
3. Discussion and alignment with Library Director to be completed 3/19



Lake Forest Library Director Evaluation Form for Trustees

Library Director's Annual Evaluation Date:

Form Instructions:
1. Each board member should individually respond to this form.
2. Inresponding to the form, board members could refer to the Annual Library Director's Summary

Evaluation, LFL Strategic Plan, Board minutes, Director Reports, usage statistics, program results or other
information sources from the year.

3. Submit this form to the Board President for inclusion in the Summation Form that will be used during the
face-to-face appointment with the director.

Scale: E = excellent S = satisfactory N = needs improvement U = unknown

LFL Director Pillars of Responsibility Rating

#1 Staff Relations, Management & Administrative Systems

= ldentify staff training needs and develop responsive
training B S N U

¢ Job descriptions are developed; regular performance
evaluations are held and documented

e Personnel policies and state and federal regulations
on workplaces and employment are effectively
implemented

« Staff development and education is encouraged;

e Staff understand how their role at the library relates to
the mission

o Library climate atiracts, keeps, and motivates a
diverse staff of top quality people

m
w
s
C

m m m m
w nw nu ow
z Z2 Z Z
Cc C cCc C

Comments:

#1 Totals: E S N U

#2 Board Relationship
e Appropriate, adequate, and timely information is
provided to the board
e Support is provided to board committees
e The board is informed on the condition of the
organization and all important factors influencing it
e Director works effectively with the Board

m m m m
mw n nuowm
Zz Z2 Z2 Z
CcC C C C

Comments:

#2 Totals: E S N U




#3 Strategic & Long Range Planning

Comments:

The library is making progress on its long-range
plan (LRP) with bi-annual updates
Development of plans to meet the goals and
objectives of the LRP are carried out with staff
and trustee involvement

New services and programs are developed
creatively and are well received by the
community

Goals and objectives are evaluated regularly
Staff are aware of library’s long-range plan and
actively working to support it

Explore and develop ideas {o engage new users

#3 Totals: E

E S
E S
E S
E S
E S
E S
S

-z Z =

cCC o C

#4 Financial Responsibility & Oversight

Comments:

Adequate control and accounting of all funds takes
place; library uses sound financial practices
Budget is prepared with input from staff and
trustees; the library operates within budget
guidelines

Official records and documents are maintained,
library is in compliance with federal, state and local
regulations and reporting requirements (such as
annual report, payroll withholding and reporting,
etc.)

Funds are disbursed in accordance with budget,
contract/grant requirements and donor
designations

#4 Totals: E

E S

E S

E S

E S
S




#5 Library Programs, Services and Assets

Comments:

Select, trial and evaluate self-check options
Customer service received by patrons
Consistent application of policies that affect the
public

Expand accessibility of library services to the
community

Expand homebound outreach efforts

Investigate, assess and test opportunities to
deliver services to West Side residents

Improve accessibility and usability of exterior and
interior space to improve quality of library visits
Identify and market programs to relevant patron
groups (i.e., Young Adult, Senior, Children’s, E
Disabled)

Develop an evaluative system on patron usage
for use in program development

m M mm mmm

#5 Totals: E S

O oo nuonu 0 non

w

zZ Z2 Z2Z Z2 Z2 ZZ

=z

CcC CccCcCc CcCcCc

C

#6 Community Relations & Stakeholder Management

Comments:

Ensure robust and effective marketing and
communication activities

Services are communicated to the public effectively E

Working relationships and cooperative

arrangements with government officials, community E
groups and organizations

Feedback mechanism in place to hear back from
patrons

increase library presence in the community through
participation in community events

Develop more robust

relationships with local

media

m

#6 Totals: E S




#7 Facilities Management

e Revisit design option with architectural firm to
explore design to better address exterior
accessibility issues while clearly meeting diverse E
range of interior space challenges, balancing
differing user needs for social & collaborative
activities with quiet work study and reflection
e Develop plan for alternative library servicing
during reconstruction period including location,
staffing, service levels, and timing and gain E S N U
alignment with Board, City and residents

e Effectively work with City Blue Ribbon
Commission to further public-private partnership E S N )
in library improvement effort
e Building and grounds are kept up and needed
repairs and maintenance are done on a timely E S N U
basis
Comments:

#7 Totals: E S N U

Additional Comments:

[Please return this form to the Board President for inclusion in the Summation Form. The Board
President and at least one other Board member will share the Summary of the Board ratings with the

Library Director. Following that meeting, the Library Director will have the opportunity to meet with the
whole Board to discuss, if desired.]



Greco Electrical Contractors, inc. PROPOSAL
2687 Waukegan Avenue

Highland Park lllinois 60035

Phone 847 432-2070

Proposal Submitted To Work To Be Performed At
Lake Forest Library Lake Forest Library
360 E Deerpath ‘
Lake Forest ILL 60045

We propose to furnish all the material and perform all the labor necessary for the
completion of : as set forth below:

Ali fixtures to be installed by contractor are to be purchased and supplied by owner or
general confractor.

1) Furnish and instali 4 100 amp 3 Phase Breakers

2) Furnish and install 1 80 amp 3 Phase Breakers

3) Furnish and install 2 150 amp 3 Phase Breakers

4) Furnish and install 2 125 amp 3 Phase Breakers

5) Furnish and install 2 200 amp 3 Phase Breakers

6) Rebuild inside buss panels

7) Clean inside buss panels

8) Paint inside buss panels

9) An appointment with Comed is needed to be made to turn power off to clean
buss panels

10)All Comed charges to be paid by Lake Forest Library



Material supplied by contractor Shelby / specifications submitted by owner or general
contractor. All work shall be performed and completed in good workmanship like manner
per specifications submitted by owner or general contractor.

All utility fees hookups to be paid by others.
All proposals are valid for 30 days.
Total electrical bid $20,900.00

Down payment $ 10,000.00
completion of Rough in  $ 5.000.00
completion of trim out #1 $ 6,900.00

Sam Greco

Acceptance of proposal

Any alterations or deviations from this specification provided by owner or general
contractor will be completed only upon written orders from owners or general contractor
and will become an extra charge over the above estimate.All Agreements are contingent
upon strikes accidents or delay Beyond contractors control. it shall be the owner's
responsibility to obtain and maintain proper insurance. Contractor shall maintain
workman's compensation and public liability insurance and upon request shall tender a
copy to owner or general contractor. Upon the owner or general contractor signing this
estimate, it shall become a legal binding contract. Any and all cost incurred by contractor
in enforcing any of the terms and or provisions of this contract, weather in court or out of
court, including reasonable attorneys fees, shall be payable by the owner or general
contractor. Permit fees paid by others.

Date of a acceptance
Owners or general contractors signature
Owner's signature




Agenda item 12b
Second review of FY2021 Budget

This is the second look at the FY2021 Budget. There was an initial look in connection with the
Levy discussion in the fall.

This is still a draft as there are some numbers in flux that will finalize in time for the Library Board
to approve the FY2021 budget at the March 10 meeting. Given that the March meeting may have

a long agenda, the materials are coming to you now to give you additional time to review and ask
guestions.



PROGRAM/CATEGORY

Personnel

Print, Audiovisual &
E-rsources

Expenditures™

Building Maintenance

Capital Equipment

Capital Improvements

identified Reserves

Cash Reserves

Reserve Detail

Capital Equipment:

Capital Improvements:

Technology Improvements:
Operating: Balance of Funds on Hand

TOTAL

*Includes Outside Funding Sources

LAKE FOREST LIBRARY
FY2021 Budget Summary

AMOUNT COMMENT
$2,663,633 4% increase due to increase in benefit costs; filling of
open positions; and added hours of operations. Merit
increases averaging 0-3%/with some market
adjustments.
$635,000  Exceeds the state requirement of 12% of operating
budget.
$632,000 Down 3%; includes grant funded and special projects.
$232,000 Down 6%; based on estimated actual FY2020.
$105,000 Down 16%; reserves and pending work.
$105,000 Down 16%; reserves and pending work.
$2,650,000  Continue to build reserve for needed capital projects.
$1,727,562  Estimated, unaudited; reflect a 33% reserve against
operating expenses.
$2,050,000
S 300,000
S 300,000
1,727,562
$4,377,562

The Friends of Lake Forest Library provide grant funds
to support and advance the Library’s mission. The
Friends awarded $74,000 for programming and
digitization projects in FY2021.



79S°ZLE'WS  906'L8T'YS  906'L86'TS  LWL'BEL'TS vLL'955°28 £96'9€2'78 6TT'TER'TS
795'£7L'TS  906'LES'TS  906'LE6S LyL'8YE'TS vLL'95Y'TS SIT'IERTS  ZET'SBETS
000'059'28  000'059'7$  000'050'ZS  000'0SY'TS 000'00T'TS
v06'TYS 8TY'Y9R'TS  0S 959'68L5 091'6825 911’1955 SYR'SOVS LB6'SEVS
T £E9'TLE'YS  GLV'TLS'ZS  ZSE'EPE'PS B6E'PO9'ES  EEETIS'ES 755'005'€$ 9v8'LE9'ES  948'859'ES
(91) 0000125 EER'LTS 000'057% 950'v01% TEE'VSS YEL'TSS 06T°L1T5 LEY'90TS
(91) 000'5015 092'91$ 000'621S s £26'T5% T6Y'LYS LTSS 6EL'TITS
(91) 000°S0TS ELOTS 000°521S 950'v01S 600°€S £yp'SS 816'99% 869'€6S
[4 £E9°79T'vS  9V9ESS'ZTS  TSEE60'S  TPEO0S'ES  TOV'99YV'ES 819'LYY'ES 959°0Z5'ES BEVISYES
(9 000'ZETS OTS'EVTS 008'5v7S TLL'BYTS £EELTTS ZLS'TTIS vL9'6ETS vZ6'9zIS
(g) 000'TETS £E7'05€$ S5L'6Y95 690'T6V5 £0E'VSES Z9Y'T9ES 126'68E5 LBL'ESES
(1) 000'SE9% LYT'EOYS 000'6£9% 65L8L5% 8E5'B0SS 981'vZSS 056705 991'9¢5$
12 ££9'€99'78  $59'959'T$  [BL'8SSTS  EVL'0BTTS  LTT'ILYTS 86E'OVY'TS TIT'9T1S'TS 797'5TY'TS
b 660'EYT'9S  BOV'EQT'OS  BST'IBB'SS  6S6TEE'SS  OvT'659'SS TovBIS'SS 608'v/8'SS  S66'68Y'SS
z LES'STY'PS  L06'SEV'YS  TSE'EPE'VS  ESO'PEE'YS  E6Y'OTE'WS 899'T90'%$ T69EL0'YS  €98'V60'YS
1 000°vLS 000'ELS 000'€LS 000'29%
{0s) 000's$ TBETYS 000018 6£6'87$ ELL'¢9TS 50028 00v'9zS$ T89S
z 0009 0L0'TT1S 00Z'5vS 69T'L5TS 088‘90TS$ LIT'ELS T6L'LES 155'19%
61 000°LES 50919 000"1€S 9E6'78% 10L°L8S TLY'LSS LLE'SYS SKZ'TLS
(001} 05 0s 000°0T$ 0$ 0% 05 0% 0%
4 LES'EST'YS  GYS'SYT'YS  IST'PLT'PS  OTO'E90'vS  GET'SYE'ES 556'0T6'ES TLT'TLBES STE'E6L'ES
795°42L'TS 79S'LZL'TS 906'LES'TS  906'LE6S LyLBYE'TS $LL9SY'TS 8ITTERTS ZET'SBE'TS
aduey) 1adpng 0z/T1eny 128png paupny paypny paypny paypny paypny
% TEAd 0ZAd 0TA4 6TAd 8TAd LTAd 9TAd STA4
020CAd

Aleuqt 159404 e

saanlipuadxy pue anuaAay Jo Alewiwing

spung |B301
LDUeH uo spunj
Spung pRRIUIWO)

sainypuadxg pue
SINUDABY U§ BIUBIBHIO

spinypuadxg (e30] pueIn
JB30 18301

siwawanosdwy jexde]

awdmbg jedes
sasnypuadxy SupesadQ jejol
aaueuane Supying
sainypuadxy 3410
$9NOSBHF ] AV Wld

532IAIRS |BUUOSIB
sasnypuadxy unesadp

ajqejieay spuny (2301
53NUBASY {BIOL
spuny juesn

SHO

anuanay Aeigil
anuABY 19410
NOARd 1L

paseg-xe|
Bnuansy JuaLIND

1/5 puey uo spung



SB1'ZL 4 LES'STH'YS L06'SEV'YS TSEEPEYS £50'V6E'YS E6V'OLE'YS 899'190'V$ T69'Er0'YS £98'760'7S
{000's$) (0s)  oo0'ss Z8ETYS 000°01$ 6E6'82S £2£'L9T8 SL0'0TS 00r'9z3$ ZY1'89TS
000'1$ 1 000'vLS 000'€LS 000'€LS 000'29%
0085 0065y 000’95 0L0°TT1S 002'svS 69T'LSTS 088901$ LOT'ELS 76LL6S 155'19%
0s 0 000'1$ L9T'TT$ 000'15 £09S £85% yZT'SES (zeg)
00083 T4 000'0vS 010'98% 000'ZES YLTETS 981695 £L5°LTS LIL'S1S 9L0°015
{000'28) {oot) 0% 60085 0008 TLLSTS 761875 9pL'9ES 979'8ES Y9E'ZYS
0$ 0 00zs 891¢ 00z$ 6178 /TS 8TES 08€$ (414
0% ] 0% 0s 0s 0s L6€S 6675 6679 L8ES
(o0z$) {v) 008'YS LTE'SS 000°sS TEL'BS v0zZ'8% 1€2°8% 9ry'Ls yrE8S
000'9% 61 000'LES 509195 000'TES 9£6'78% T0LL8S TLY'LSS LLE'8YS SYZ'TLS
000'vS 0% 00021 61T'vZS 000'8% 612775 tr0'sTS SE6'YTS 0% 612'v2S
05 0 000°015 119'8$ 000°01$ €LLTTS £62'5€5 955'9% W60TS £6171%
000'2S 51 000'STS 9.4'87% 000°€TS$ 7v6'9€ YOE'LES 086'GES SEVLTS £EB'VES
{0000TS) 0 0 0% 000015 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
SBE'BLS 4 LES'EST'YS 6v8'8YT'YS Z5T'PLTYS DT0'E90'FS 6EL'BVE'ES §56'016ES TZTTL8ES STE'EBLES
SRE'GLS z LESESTYS EV8'8YT'YS TST'PLLYS 0T0'€90'vS 6ET'8V6'ES 556°016'€S TTT'TLB'ES STB'EBL'ES
adueyn aduey) 1adpng 0Z/1 QLA 198png paupny paitpny pajipny palipny paupny
$ % TTAS 0ZA4 0ZA4 6TA4 8TA4 LTAd 9TAd STA4
T20CAd

aWOdU| pUe 3NUAARY
Aleiqiy 3saiod el

viol

SYI9 |e30L

WOdU| JuURID B304
anuaaay AseiqiiieioL
SaNUIA3L JBYI0
pau.ies 353133U)

sauy Asesqry
spaea/ajerd adseyd
sfeq yoog/iejuay yoog

Adosojoyd
anuaaay Aeaqr

BNUBABY JBYIO [e10]
juesn ended sad

294 1edw)
wawaoceday xe) dd
DNUBA3Y 43410
nohed i1

xe| Auadoad jeiop

xe| Ajadoud
anuanay xej Auadold



REVENUE and INCOME
FY2021

Notes

Tax-Based: The Library Board approved a levy subject to the 1991 Property Tax Extension Limitation Act.
The Act limits the annual increase in property tax extensions to the lesser of 5% or the increase in the
consumer price index (CPl), plus allowances for new construction and voter approved increases. The
FY2021 budget reflects an increase in revenue based on a 2.1% CPi-based levy increase and an estimated

growth value of $29,533. Together, these provide a revenue increase of $79,385 over FY2021; or a total of
$4,253,537.

Personal Property Tax Replacement: reflects a conservative 15% increase over FY20 budget based on
FY2020 estimated actual. State continues to retain these funds.

Photocopy: decreased from FY2020 budget based on FY2020 estimated actual as scan/email service
continues to replace photocopying.

Book Rental/Replacement cards: reduced based on FY2020 estimated actual and discontinuation of the
rental program.

Library Fines: reduced 100% based due to adoption of fine free policy in FY 2020.

Interest: increased 25% based on FY2020 estimated actual. Conservative in the event reserves are utilized
in capital improvement and restoration projects.

Other Revenue: no change. a

Per Capita Grant: grant application submitted in January 2020 for FY2021; no guarantee of funding given
State of lilinois financial situation.

Gifts: based on FY2020 estimated actual. This line reflects other than extraordinary gifts.

Grants: includes $74,000 award from Friends of Lake Forest Library; approved January 2020; to be paid May
2,2020.

Impact fee: implemented in October 1994; based on FY2020 estimated actual.

Although the Library will receive an increase in the tax levy due to the CPI and growth lines, other revenue

streams are reduced. Overall revenue and income increase is an estimated 2%, inclusive of awarded grant
funds for FY2021.



182'67% T EEQ'TLEDS 6LY'TLE'TS ZGE'EVEYS S6EEV09'ES EEETTSES 755°005'€% 9Y8'LEY'ES 9/8'859'€S$
{000'0%5) (91) 000'0TZS £ERLTS 000°052$ 950'v0TS TE6'PSS YEE'TSS 06T'LITS LEV'90TS
0s 0 0$ 0s 0s 0% 0s 0% 0S 0s
(000'028) (91) 000'50TS 092'91$ 000'STTS 0s £26'15% T6¥'LYS TLT0SS 6ELTTTS
(000'0Z8) (91} 000'50TS £40'TS 000's2TS 950'v01$ 600'ES evr'ss 816'99% 869'€65
182°69% 4 ££9°T9T'VS 9v9'£S5 TS 7SE'E60'7S TVE'D0S'ES 10P'997'€S 8T9' LYY ES 959°075°€S GEV'TGY'ES
(008°€19) (9) 000°ZECS 0IS'EVTS 008'SYZS TLL'BYTS EEELTTS ZLS'TTTS PL96ETS $T6'971S
(552'L15) {€) 000'2€9% £ET'0GES 5S2'6%9% 6902615 £0E'YGES 79P°19€$ 176'68E$ 18L'ESES
(000'vS) (t) 000'5£9% LYT'E0rS 000'6£9% 6SL'BLSS 8£5'805% 981'77SS 0S6'VLYS 994'9v5%
YL 79 g £LE'E08S £88°L5YS 668'0VLS vL9'9L55 616'059$ 1051995 09%£595 SOE'YY9S
79E°TYS 4 09Z'098'T$ ELL'86TTS 868'L18'TS 690'Y0L'TS 80£'578'TS 168°8LL'TS 159'858'TS L56'08L°1S
afueyd adueyd jadpng 0Z/1 alA 199png paypny paupny paupny paipny paupny
% TZAd 0ZAd DZA4 61 Ad 8TA4 LTAd 9TA4 STAd
T20CAd

sasnypuadxy jexde) pue Suneisado
Alteiqi] 159404 ayeT

[elof

{ejoL-qns

EEVSEECN]
juswanosdwy jended

wawdinby jeyde)
saunypuadxy jende)

jejol-qns
aoueualuie Suipyng

ainypuadx3y
0 s399[g0 Jayio

RIPBIN D1UCA1D3]3
pug ‘{eNSin0ipny ‘1uiid

s93ui4

sadem/seneles
Alo3oied



9€8'70TS 4 ££9'€99°28 §59'9S9'T$  L6L'8G5ZS  EVL'08TTS LTTOLY TS 8BEOYYTS  LOT'STSZS  29TSIYTS
vLY'T9% 3 £LE°€08S £88'LSYS 663075 v£9'9L5% 6160595 £0S'T99% L51'959$ S0EYY9s
{o0zs) {¥) 00v'vS 806'ZS 009'%$ BES'ES 8L8'€S 089'€$ S6T'TS LOB'ES
{9019) (1) Y68'PTS ETV'6S 000°STS 98L°01S vLOTTS 068'0TS YESOTS 95Z7'0T$
856'595 81 095 T¥YS 506'552S Z09'SLES 8/8'€8TS SI6'PTES y9E'0TES Z19°00€% T A ATAS
{8zzs) (8) ov9'zs 60915 898'7$ §56'TS 05028 ZT6'TS 888'1T$ 8Z6'TS
0% 0 £008% 651°5S 000°8% 9£65 018'2S 0sY'TTS LYL'OTS 080°91%
(664°LS) (s) 098'LETS VES'68S 659'SVTS T£0'82TS £T9'9ETS TWRTETS EET'BETS £99'0ETS
6v87S £ 6TOV6TS SGE'E6S 0L1'681S 605°LYTS 605'64TS 69£°08TS BYE'ERTS 2L6'88TS
Z9ETYS z 092°098'1$ €L4'86T'TS  868'LIB'TS  690V0L'TS 20£°678°TS  T68'8LL'TS  0S9'8S8'TS  LS6'0BL'TS
(00585) {v1) 0$ SYE'LS 00585 786'VTS PP LTS EEQ'LTS LOO'LTS 686'VTS
298059 £ 092°098°1S 8Ty I6T'TS  86E'608'TS  SBO'689'TS vpeL08'TS  8G8'T9L'TS  EV9'TYR'TS  896'G9L'TS
143 1€ 1€ 13 0€ o€ 0€ o€
aseasdu| BseaU| jodpng 0zZ/T AlA 193png palpny paypny paupny paypny paupny
s % TZAd 0ZA4 0ZA4 6TAd 8TA4 LTAd 9TA4 STA4
TZOCAd

a8eyoed uonesuadwo)

Alteaqry 159404 e

Y101 ANVYD
jejol-qns
slijauag-1xald
|eluBQ ‘@auednsy|
2PN ‘BoueInsU|
3417 ‘9ouelnsuyy
dwio) 5 J9MI0M
A314N23S |e1O0S
(3uawai3al) YN
siyjouag adulid
lejor-qns
Ajna8uot

sa8ep g sallejes
ws|eanby sy |jn4

saahojdwig jua.un)



COMPENSATION PACKAGE
FY2021

Notes

Salaries & Wages

Total personnel costs, including pensions and insurance requirements, are budgeted to increase 4% over

FY2020 budget. The increase is due to increase costs in benefits, filling of open positions, and added hours
of operation.

The budget anticipates merit increases of 0-5.0%; which is reflective of similarly situated libraries and
recommendations from HRSource (formerly Management Association). In January 2019, the Library
benchmarked its salaries against similarly situated institutions and adopted new salary ranges. In FY2020,
the Library implemented a merit-based performance system, which does not provide for automatic cost-
of-living increases. The Library’s longevity pay plan ended in FY2020.

Longevity: program discontinued January 1, 2020.

IMRF Retirement: 13% of all fulltime and eligible part-time salaries and wages.

Sacial Security: direct relationship to payroll; 7.65% per $100 in salaries and wages.

Unemployment Compensation: based on FY2020 estimated actual.

Worker's Compensation: a direct relationship to payroll and state-mandated costs based on FY2020
estimated actual.

Insurance, Life: premiums for the 2020 calendar year are included with an estimated increase for the first
quarter of calendar year 2021.

Insurance, Dental: premiums for the 2020calendar year are included with an estimated increase for the
first quarter of calendar year 2021.

Insurance, Medical: premiums for the 2020 calendar year are included with an estimated increase for the
first quarter of calendar year 2021.

Flex-Benefits: $200 per each fulltime employee that carries health insurance and earns the ThinkHealthy
points throughout the year; includes an administrative service charge.



%7609 %1579 %L7°S9 %EV'TL %0y 0L 3unesadQ 01 suyaudg 1B saLeleS %
%vS Ty %Ly vt %C6'8Y %99°2S %CETS Sunesadp o1 sauejes %
%TE 09 %T6°8S %09°'TS %Sy LS %79'95 dNUIA3Y 03 SHJaUY 1B SALIEIES %
A4 7 %S8' IV %89°8¢ %SE Y %LT TV anuaA3Y 01 saLe|es %
€E9TLE DS 75£'€60'7S 91Z'9St'€S T0Y'997°€S TOY'99t'€S sasuadx]
LES'STY'VS TSEEPE TS TL6'TLEYS €67'0TEVS €6V'0TEYS sanuanay
€LE'€08S 688°07LS 678'795S 616'059S L0S'T99S syjauag
092°098°'TS 868°L18'TS ¥06'069°TS$ €0£'ST8'TS 168°8LL'TS salejes
123png TZOZAA 128png 0Z0ZAd | PaUPNY 6T0ZAL [PRUPNY 8TOZAL| PRUPNY LTOZA] Aseaqr 1sa104 e




“u2JaY Pa1IalaL aq 10U Aew spuny uesd yum paseyaind ale sjeLialew |BUOIHPPY
‘94T s pasodoud Apuaaind 1a8png Bupiesado Jo %ZT ! 198pnq s|elB1BW PIPUBWILIOIAI 5]

(000V$) (1) 000'SE9%  LpT'€OvS  000'6€9S  6SL'8/5S  8PE'OTSS  98T'¥eSS  0S6'vLVS  99v'9vSS
(0008%) (9) 000°0ZT$  6S0'¥SS$ 000'8TTS  6LT'T6% TVO'TPIS  8L6'T8S  TWT'8LS  LYO'L6S
000°6$ € 000,28 YIL'06TS  000°992  LOE'6TTS  T9ELWPIS  LLI'E0TS  LTIE'LLTIS  9TW'W6IS
(000'S$) (2) 0000v2$  pLY'SSTS  000'SvTS  €LT°/9TS  Sve'Lzes  TE0'6ETS  T6v'6TCS  €00'SSTS
auey) agueyd 1e8png  0z/tleny  198png paupny psupny  paupny  paypny  paupny
$ % TZ0ZA4 0ZAd 0ZAd 6TAd 8T Ad LTAS 9TAd STA4
TZOZA4

sjeua1e Aleaqr
Aseiqr 158104 9)e]

jelol

[ensiaoipny

juduopn

g

EM!



LIBRARY MATERIALS
FY2021

Notes

Materials budget exceeds the lllinois State Library recommendation of 12% of operating budget
for materials. The Library continues to balance the interests of those patrons that prefer print
with those that prefer streaming and download options.

Print: books, newspapers, and periodicals; ongoing evaluation of overall print collection.
Newspaper and periodical collection is under constant evaluation for use; new titles are added

and unused titles removed. Print materials are also added outside of this budget line with special
grants and gifts.

Non-print materials: electronic online databases, services, and materials. Databases are under

constant evaluation for use and better forming options. Increase for purchase of individual titles
in shared databases.

Audiovisual: cds, DVDs, Great Courses, video games, audiobooks, Launchpads, Playaways, and
the Take Out Tech Collection.



‘sieah jeosy ssoioe BuiwiesBoid J0j SJUNDDOR B5aL) OJUl PIEME S108)aY,

{55£°£18) (g} 000'2E95 EEL'0SES 55L'6v85 690'Z6YS  EOE'PSES BEV'ISES vZ6'06ES LBL'ESES
{005'28) i:t4] 005'9$ ELLTS 000'6% L1z'ss 955'9% 90£°L$ 659°25 8v2'LS
0% 0 008'25 €L8'€S 00525 209'9% 924’58 £0E'9S T6T'ETS pr9'81S
000'52$ 62 000°0T1% TL'LES 000'S8S BEE'EES  LSE'EVS 0% 03 0$
0% o 005°9T$ 5155 005'91% 8TL'ETS  989'9S fatat S68'2T$ 956'65
0% o o000'sTS BLY'ES 000'5TS 901'T1$ £48'8% Zro'ss L56'LS BOV'ES
000°Z% g 000528 0zT'51S 000'vT$ 0LS'8TS  SL05T$ §5T'91% 109'6T$ OTE'ETS
{o09'vs) (8€) 00v'LS STI'YS 000'TTS VLE'VS 61E'SS 80§'9$ 146'8$ 88Y'9S
0% o 005% yOs$ 0053 £055 S9ES vs SL9'9T$ 0$
0$ 0 0oz'1S 198 00218 5859
{oo0's18) V23] 000'9Z8 259218 o0GTYrS 688'L15  ZOT'0ES L51'92S TSE'8LS 9BT'TES
0% 0 OOO'ETS y09'9% 000'ETS 908'L5 £09°0T$ 9L9'ES var'as 1274533
{005'18) {67} ons'9s 2989 000°8% 7655 612'1$ LTS LBL'SS EEY'TS
00v°1% 14 00Z°9% SEL'9S 0OB'VS 81078 spv'es [advat SL2°T8 DES'TS
SYS1S 8 000°0T$ 150°TS SSV'BTS 09L'T1$
{0053} {1} 005'L€ES YIS'ETS 000'8ES g1s'9zs  {(zoz'vis) LOE'0TS {vzs'v$) {(py1'15)
008'T$ £ 00z'L$ ovs'ss 00L'v$ TLE'ES TLE'ES OBOES v9s'TS SEV'TS
{oot'pz$} {8 008'v5Z$ L91°08TS 00L'BLTS 0042125 BTT'BELS £98'5125 958'ZELS 180'62Z$
(000°1$) {et) 000'2$ 0s 000'€S L7018 't LEV'ES 0LL'ES L09'V$
os o ooy'es 158 oov'es EBE'TS ZLYTS LpTs £00'TS 98BS
{o0s3) {9) 008°LS 566'9% 000'8S S8L'9% 065'9$ 00v'9$ 0EY'LS 868'9%
0% 0 0% o3 0% 0% 6v$ 0% ETL'TS 0$
0s 0 000°27ES ZIEPIS 0O0'ZES £9v'92s  (6S2'TS) 105'6% 9EES {vats)
{0083) €4} 005'92$ 15€'91S 000°LTS 966'7eS  OVE'EZS ESS'ETS §0S'€% 009'71$
aduey) adueys jadpng 0z/1 [enidy iadpng paupny paypny paupny papny paipny
H % TZAd 0ZA4 OzAd 6TAd BTAS LTAd 9TAd STAd
T2Z0CAd

sainyipuadx3 Sunesado 18410

Aseaqry 1s8404 el

{30l

sjuBAB/BUIPUDA

{auy) euoydaga}

synafosd jepads
UooWoId

JuBwdojaAa( |RUCISSRIOLY
Bupung

adeisoy

{sx98y0 punoiByoeq)
JUBLIINIDAY [BUUosIad
(auy) 884 Bupjueg auljuo
sayddng asyo

san{] diysiequiaiy
asusdxy sBunasy

dinb3 Jo aaueualtEN
{edaq

LSuiesfold spuaant
Augigert 0 1g g "asueInsy)
SaDjAlEg [BNIDRIOD
Buipuig

AduEMDHYy 0INY

pny

FIOM HY

SSuwesdolg Jnpy
530AI05 SAIEIISIUIWPY

gy



01

(oot'ves) {6) 009'vSZS £91'081S 00L'8LTS 00L'4128 6T2'861S £9£'GTTS 958'7€2s  180'SCTS
{0099) (z2) 00128 0S8'TS 00228
(00088} (Z1) 000°8¢S £56'6TS 000°9%$ §50°57$ 869°TES JAIAr43 009'6€$ SELILES
{00S3) v) 00SETS 0L1°G% 000'vTS 66T°LS 97E'8S SLT'LS ovT'8s 00L'9%
{(000TS) {£) 000'ETS €5TLS 000'vTS yIv'6s v89°LS £17'65 ZIv'6S 62L'8%
{000°€S) (v) 000°SLS 70°0LS 000848 QET'TLS 917’658 97£'998 $00°LLS EEV' VIS
{000°€S) (£} 000'6€S8 £T0°2€S 000'2YS LLE'LES £27'Les TE'TES 9/1°2€s 6VG6ES
{000'8%) {o1) 000'vLS £88'¢vS 000Z8% 9zv'195 610'89% ¥90'89% $25'99% SE6'L9S
aduey)d aduey) ja8png 0z/1 lenpdy jadpng paypny palpny paupny paupny palpny
S % TZAd 0ZAd 0ZAd 6TAd 8TAd LTA 9TAd STAd
T20CAd

|IB12Q SOIIAJDS [BN}DRIIUCD

Adeuqiy 1sa404 e

WNI}osu0d
$71 ‘s921A185 Jaindwio) aanesadoo) 1S3D

(sasuadxs aseqelep
autjuo pajejas pue Juiisoy 3)SGam) 1BUHUD

Aeig e3eis sioutyj} 151

WIsAS AlBagH] 10 $5040y Suiyoeay:sTivy

183ua]) Asesgr Jeindwo) sutiuo 13120
|elo}

aoueudlUlRW pue Suilsoy gam g
uonduosgns Jepuaie) gam 4syio
-251W 0OZAAQ ‘Wawdinba BYI0
SETERYENIT ]

151/51IvH/I100

{IAD) woddns 8 NV

aseaT wawdinby sLndwo) 1D

(we1sAg Azeiqil pajesdalul) $O0

a3



OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES
FY2021

Notes

Administrative Services: charged by City of Lake Forest for services such as human resources, payroll,
financial accounting system, audit assistance, and snow removal.

Audit: fee already bid for FY2021 by City of Lake Forest.

Contractual Services: see line item detail, page 11.

Meetings Expense: cost of meetings, meals; based on FY2020 estimated actual. Staff attend ALA, PLA, and
ILA conferences as well as specialized library, technology, instruction, and programming seminars.

Insurance, D & O Liahility: based on increased coverage for D&O insurance.
Legal: increased 8% in light of pending special building projects.
Maintenance of Equipment: varies from year to year; based on FY2020 estimated actual.

Membership Dues: American Library Association, Hlinois Library Association, local non-profits, and
Management Association; based FY2020 estimated actual.

Office Supplies: based on FY2020 estimated actual.
Telephone: DVD2GO Comcast lines. Based on FY2020 estimated actual.
Postage: based on FY2020 estimated actual.

Printing: based on FY2020 estimated actual.

Programs (Adult and Juvenile): The Friends of Lake Forest Library awarded grant funds for programming in

January 2020 which will be paid May 1, 2020 for FY2021. Known awarded grant funds are now reflected in
the Library’s financials.

Promotion: based on FY2020 estimated actual.

Professional Development: continuing education, use of webinars and online training to manage costs.

Special Projects: 29% increase; ongoing building projects.

Vending: reduced 25%; coffee, tea, and other supplies; based on FY2020 estimated actual.

11



4

(008°€19) (9)  000'Z€z$  OIS'SPTS  008'SvZ$  TLL'8YTS  EEE'LZIS  TLS'TLIS  VLO'GETS ¥76'921S
(008$) (8) 0006$ v11°9$ 0086$ Tv0'LS ¥STLS 16€9$ £99'5$ 6EG'SS
(000'02$) (b¥)  000'sZS YLY'LTS 000'5¥$ T80TES 0T6'VES 80T'8€ES ¥68°8€S 096°TV$
0S$ 0 000°TES 690°TTS 000°Z€S 808°€CS vEE'LS €TY'TIS Y6T VTS 0ET'LTS
000'5$ vT  000°0V$ zr'6Ts 000'SES 188°97$ zT6'vTs 660'GTS 8ZL'ETS £00'SS
0$ 0 000°8€$ TIV'TES 000'8€$ v/6'8CS$ 966°LTS £56'SCS 6T2°LTS L6T'VTS
(000°sS) (61)  000TCS 81L'8S 000°£TS LTS 755'TIS 90L'TTS SEETTS SYO'CTS
000'5$ vT  000'TYS$ L56'STS 000'ZES
000'Z$ 6 000vCS 9vEETS 000°2Z$ STL'8TS S9V'ETS 768'CTS 8E9'8TS 9v6'02$
adueyy  adueyd 1w8png  0z/1iendy  193png paupny paupny paupny paypny pajipny
$ % TZA4 0ZA4 0ZAd 6TAd 8TAd LTAd 9TAd STAd
TTOZAL

asueuajuiel Suipjing
Aseuaqry 1sa404 e

iejol

13180

2IUBUIUIBIN SPUNOJID

aoueualutey dinbg

saueuauiey Buipjing

{(Butpjing) scueansuj

$32IAIBS {ENIORIUOD)

Sa2IAIRG [eIpOoISND

saiddns jeliopuer

wall



BUILDING MAINTENANCE
FY2021

Notes
Janitor Supplies: increased 9% based on estimated actual FY2020.

Custodial Services: increased 14%; addition of custodial services resulted in significant
improvement in the overall cleanliness of the building.

Contractual Services: decreased 19% based on estimated actual FY2020; includes elevator
maintenance, HVAC service, sprinkler, and other contracts.

Insurance: potential increase due to claims. Based on estimated actual FY2020.

Building Maintenance: varies from year to year depending on needs. An older building requires
continued maintenance and upgrades to lighting and other features.

Equipment Maintenance: no increase based on estimated actual FY2020.

Grounds Maintenance: reduced 44% due to use of robotic lawn mower; based on estimated
actual FY2020.

Water: based on estimated actual FY2020. No increase anticipated over FY2020 budget from

restructuring of meter versus usage by the City of Lake Forest on personal and commercial
properties and surcharge to offset pension liabilities.

13



